Water
Board of
Lemesos

Water Board of Lemesos
66, Franklin Roosevelt Avenue
CY-3012 Lemesos
Tel: 25830000
Fax: 25564382
P.O.Box 50225
CY-3602 Lemesos
E-mail: contact@wbl.com.cy
Website: www.wbl.com.cy

Cover Photo:
“Drops” by Kypros Theodoulou
rd
3 Prize - 2013 Photography Exhibition

Table of Contents
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44

Address by the Chairman of the WBL
Establishment and objectives of the Board
The Board of Directors 2016
The new Board of Directors 2017
Meetings of the Water Board of Lemesos
The personnel of the WBL
Water supply
Water supply per source 1987 -2017
Water supply per source 1987 - 2017 - Graph
Water supply per source 2016 - 2017
Water quality monitoring
Main activities
Water supply area
Requests for repairs
Water consumption 1967 - 2017
Number of consumers 1967 - 2017
Water consumption 2012 - 2017
Number of consumers 2012 - 2017
Maximum daily consumption 2011 - 2017
Average daily per capita consumption 2011 - 2017
Average daily domestic consumption
Non-revenue water quantity 1997 - 2017
Non-revenue water quantity 2010 -2010
Graph - Capital expenditure
Water conservation
Telemetry
Financial results
Website
Water loss from the water supply network
Five-year project planning
Statistical data
Comparative table
Installation of new pipes 2016 - 2017
WBL construction works
The Water Museum in Venice
Visit of the Municipal Water and Sewerage Company of Larissa (DEYAL)
Presentation at Cyprus University of Technology
Stockholm Junior Water Prize
World Water Day
European programmes (Castwater, IMPACT, Smart water2020)
Meeting with the Minister of Agriculture, Rural Development and Environment
Seminar on Tender Regulations
Staff trainings: Health & Safety, First Aid
Christmas and New Year's Party 2017

5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
15
16
17
18
18
19
19
20
20
21
22
22
23
24
24
24
24
24
25
26 - 27
27
28
29
30
30
31
32
33
34 - 36
37
37
37
38

45
46
47
48
49
50

Part B - Financial statements
External auditor's report to the members of the Board of the WBL
Statement of financial position
Statement of comprehensive income
Statement of changes in equity
Cash flow statement
Notes to the financial statements

41 - 43
44
46
47
48
49 - 75

Part A
Miscellaneous

Address by the Chairman of the WBL

The 2016-2017 period in review did not begin under
favourable auspices as far as rainfall and dam fullness
levels are concerned. The situation slightly improved from
autumn to December 2016, marking relatively better
rainfall levels. In 2017, there had been a negative
development with the dam water levels presenting an
extremely alarming picture. Within these adverse
conditions, resulting from the impact of droughts, the
WBL, having as a primary objective to cover the water
needs of the consumers, both in terms of quality and
quantity, as well as to modernise its infrastructures, to
improve productivity and development, fully responded to
the challenges and expectations of our times.
Considering that water scarcity has become a global issue, it is a foremost necessity that each and every one of
us contributes to its prudent use and saving.
The rational management of water resources, as well as the policy formulation and the decision-making
processes with regard to leakage management, remain amongst the primary objectives of the Board.
The Water Museum continued its organised efforts to promote water awareness, especially amongst students
of all ages. The importance of water and its correct use are some of the main topics presented at the Water
Museum.
The Board is facing the future with optimism, creating the right conditions for its effective and efficient
operation and it will most certainly continue its efforts to improve the services provided to its consumers.
On the occasion of the Biennial Report 2016-2017 of the Water Board of Lemesos, I would like to extend my
sincerest thanks to the Members of the Board of Directors of the WBL for their excellent cooperation.
Finally, I would like to express my appreciation to the Manager of the Board and to the WBL personnel for their
hard-working efforts and willingness to contribute to the attainment of the Board’s objectives.
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Establishment and objectives of
the Board
The Water Board of Lemesos is a Legal
Entity under Public Law. It was established
in 1951, operating under the Water
Supply (Municipal and Other Areas) Law,
Cap. 350. It is managed by a nine-member
board, consisting of three members
appointed by the Council of Ministers and
six members appointed by the local
Municipalities that are supplied with
water by the WBL. The Chairman of the
Board is appointed by the Council of
Ministers.

The Board’s sole purpose is to provide
sufficient quantity and quality of water in
order to meet the domestic, commercial
and industrial needs of its consumers. Its
main concern and focus is to provide the
best possible services to its consumers.

This objective is achieved by :
• maintaining and expanding the water
supply network;
• planning and implementing technical
projects with full respect to the
environment;
• imposing water rates to ensure the
financing of development projects and
the operation of the Board, on a nonprofit-making basis;
• upgrading the quality of the services
provided, as well as by modernizing its
procedures.

Public Fountain
(In the former Turkish Cypriot
neighbourhood of Lemesos)
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Kyriakos Tsolakis
Lemesos District Officer
Chairman of the Board

The Board
of Directors
2016

Andreas Christou
Mayor of Lemesos
up to December 2016

up to March 2017

Giorgos Georgiou
Mayor of
Kato Polemidia
(up to May 2016)

Doros Antoniou
Mayor of
Mesa Yitonia

Kyriakos Hadjitofis
Mayor of
Ayios Athanasios

Persa Papaioannou
Member of the
Municipal Council
of Lemesos

Michalis Vasiliou
Member of the
Municipal Council
of Lemesos

Nicos Anastasiou
Deputy Mayor of
Kato Polemidia
(as of June 2016)

Zoe Hadjivasiliou
Philippos Katranis
Representative of the Representative of the
Director of the Water
Accountant General
Development Department
of the Republic

Socrates Metaxas
Manager of the WBL
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The new
Board of Directors
2017
Marios Alexandrou
Lemesos District Officer
Chairman of the Board
(as of September 2017)

Nicos Nicolaides
Mayor of Lemesos

Nicos Anastasiou
Mayor of
Kato Polemidia

Iliana Tofa
Philippos Katranis
Representative of the Representative of the
Director of the Water
Accountant General
Development Department
of the Republic

Doros Antoniou
Mayor of
Mesa Yitonia

Michalis Fellas
Member of the
Municipal Council
of Lemesos

Socrates Metaxas
Manager of the WBL
Σελίδα8 9
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Marinos Kyriakou
Mayor of
Ayios Athanasios

Michalis Sokratous
Member of the
Municipal Council
of Lemesos

Meetings of the Water Board of Lemesos
Eleven meetings of the Board were held in 2016 and ten meetings in 2017. During these meetings,
the Board addressed, among others, the following issues:
1. Management of water resources - water quality provided by the Water Development
Department (WDD) to the WBL.
2. Replacement of the WBL water supply network in the refugee settlements of Linopetra, Ayios
Ioannis, Makarios III (Polemidia), Kapsalos, the Turkish Cypriot neighbourhood and the
communities of Moutayiaka and Fasoula.
3. Replacement of the water supply network in Ellados, Kritis and Griva Digeni streets.
4. Construction of new water reservoirs in Yermasoyia and Ayios Athanasios.
5. Water rates from the WDD to the WBL and from the WBL to the consumers.
6. Employment of post-graduate students from Cyprus University of Technology at the WBL.
7. Collaboration with Cyprus University of Technology.
8. Collaboration between WBL and KIOS Research Centre - University of Cyprus.
9. Participation of the WBL in the IAESTE international student exchange programme.
10. Collaboration with the Municipal Water and Sewerage Company of Larissa (DEYAL).
11. Participation of the WBL in European Programmes.
12. Stockholm Junior Water Prize (SJWP) student competition.
13. New Organisational Structure of the WBL.

Meeting of the Board
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Manager
Socrates Metaxas
Head of Financial Services
Phryne Potamou

Deputy Head of Technical
Services
Andreas Fedonos

Head of Information Technology
Antonis Nicolaou

Internal Auditor
Panagiotis Michael

Assistant Head of
Financial Services
Rodothea Michael

Accounts Inspector
Andreas Hadjichristophis

2017

2016

Personnel of the WBL
as at 31 December 2017
Administrative Personnel
Monthly-paid technicians
and labour staff
Hourly-paid personnel
TOTAL

Personnel of the WBL
as at 31 December 2016
44

Administrative Personnel
Monthly-paid technicians
and labour staff
Hourly-paid personnel
TOTAL
Retirements:

29
20
93

44
29
20
93

1. Michalis Thrasyvoulou, member of the
technical staff, retired in April.
2. Christakis Economides, janitor, retired in
May.
3. Andreas Daniel, in charge of the
maintenance of electromechanical
equipment, retired in October.
Deceases

There had been no retirements
or recruitments in 2017.

Dimitris S. Constantinou, member of the
technical staff, passed away in February.
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Water supply
The Board receives water from:
• Limassol Water Treatment Plant
• Episkopi Desalination Plant
• 17 boreholes at Amathos River Delta
• 1 borehole at Kouris River Delta
• Ypsonas – Polemidia joint project
• Moutayiaka joint project
• Ayia Parasevi joint project
• 4 natural springs at Kakomallis Forest
Water from the aforementioned resources undergoes an adequate water purification with chlorine
and it is distributed to the Municipalities of Lemesos, Kato Polemidia, Mesa Yitonia, Ayios
Athanasios and Yermasoyia, as well as to the communities of Fasoula, Palodia, Mathikoloni, Pano
Polemidia, Moutayiaka, Finikaria.
The water supply network of the WBL consists of 40 reservoirs of a total capacity of 68.000m³ , 37
pumping stations and 1.151km pipes.

Water supply (m³) from 1967 until 2017
20.000.000

18.000.000
16.000.000
14.000.000
12.000.000
10.000.000
8.000.000
6.000.000
4.000.000
2.000.000
0

1967

1977

1987

3.427.123

6.013.864

9.287.885

2007

2017

12.914.576

17.562.411

Έτος Year

Production

Παραγωγή
Water
supply

1997
9.993.222

Water supply (m³) from 2010 until 2017
20.000.000
18.000.000
16.000.000
14.000.000
12.000.000
10.000.000
8.000.000
6.000.000
4.000.000
2.000.000
0

14.568.052 13.895.250

2010

2011

17.243.204
15.938.967 16.519.778 15.828.796

17.562.411

13.637.827

2012

2013

2014
Έτος
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Year

2015

2016

2017

Water supply per source (m³) from 1987 until 2017
No. of
Year consumers

Moutayiaka
Project Ypsonas
Project

Limassol
Water
Treatment
Plant

Yermasoyia

Kouris

Garyllis

Springs

Ships

Ayia
Paraskevi
project

Total

1987. 41.219

-

4.271.756

2.165.671

1.647.826

-

-

1.202.632

-

-

9.287.885

1988. 42.592

-

5.229.614

3.296.294

1.417.585

-

-

994

-

-

9.944.487

1989. 44.076

-

5.527.124

3.739.567

1.795.022

-

-

0

-

-

11.061.713

1990. 45.156

-

5.452.487

3.852.123

1.776.646

-

-

0

-

-

11.081.256

1991. 46.482

-

1992. 47.626

-

3.155.111

3.556.536

2.087.960

-

-

0

-

-

8.799.607

6.043.318

1.783.310

2.032.789

-

-

0

-

-

9.859.417

1993. 48.739

-

6.168.564

2.900.790

1.905.156

-

-

0

-

-

10.974.510

1994. 49.779

2.292.435

3.342.436

2.542.759

3.059.243

-

-

0

-

-

11.236.873

1995. 51.249

3.341.005

3.295.518

2.897.379

2.221.342

-

-

0

-

-

11.755.244

1996. 52.519

3.433.727

5.274.521

2.278.312

689.007

-

-

6.165

-

-

11.681.732

1997. 54.026

5.740.258

3.279.692

955.184

0

-

-

18.088

-

-

9.993.222

1998. 54.875

5.947.803

1.112.807

1.656.673

429.194

-

-

14.459

-

-

9.160.936

1999. 55.575

7.194.761

706.153

685.420

1.233.318

-

-

15.598

-

-

9.835.250

2000. 55.575

6.962.219

1.005.323

0

1.767.758

-

-

13.033

-

-

9.748.333

2001.

56827

9.777.479

1.261.999

0

330.013

-

-

16.581

-

-

11.386.072

2002. 57.741

8.165.319

3.491.078

0

0

-

-

14.553

-

-

11.670.950

2003. 62.970

8.829.143

3.028.144

100.351

0

-

-

27.922

-

-

11.985.560

2004. 68.729

8.253.024

4.209.998

0

0

235.259

166.505

23.090

-

-

12.887.876

2005. 71.172

9.449.461

3.600.015

0

0

256.570

306.039

22.941

-

-

13.635.026

2006. 72.113

12.075.150

671.432

0

0

233.629

305.944

27.767

-

-

13.313.922

2007. 74.404

11.860.613

583.323

0

0

176.080

263.414

31.146

-

-

12.914.576

2008. 78.340

5.491.167

175.008

1.729.971

0

151.607

296.751

18.519

2.792.436

-

10.655.459

2009. 82.202

6.572.247

154.060

33.750

2.743.596

234.924

183.339

30.799

1.782.515

-

11.735.230

2010. 82.581

9.198.160

1.405.736

149.264

2.806.670

259.899

711.869

36.454

-

-

14.568.052

2011. 84.591

9.938.872

644.083

0

2.308.681

243.211

688.861

37.422

-

34.120

13.895.250

2012. 94.348

8.090.881

4.177.113

0

205.293

339.248

712.434

58.966

-

53.892

13.637.827

2013. 97.395

9.377.192

5.585.498

106.748

0

318.398

671.760

57.525

-

53.106

16.170.227

2014. 99.185

12.577.882

2.550.395

101.619

0

398.261

795.630

29.951

-

66.040

16.519.778

2015. 99.922

10.845.539

2.382.315

1.276.688

0

488.020

721.881

41.137

-

73.216

15.828.796

2016. 100.029

11.453.738

3.736.500

805.121

0

431.508

722.573

26.923

-

66.841

17.243.204

2017. 100.808

13.020.467

2.179.221

1.146.549

0

369.048

746.943

41.391

-

58.792

17.562.411

Kouris - March 2016

Kouris - November 2017
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Water supply per source from 1987 – 2017

18000000

16000000

14000000

12000000

10000000

8000000

6000000

4000000

2000000

1987.
1988.
1989.
1990.
1991.
1992.
1993.
1994.
1995.
1996.
1997.
1998.
1999.
2000.
2001.
2002.
2003.
2004.
2005.
2006.
2007.
2008.
2009.
2010.
2011.
2012.
2013.
2014.
2015.
2016.
2017.

0

Διυλιστήριο
Water Treatment Plant

Γερμασόγεια
Yermasoyia

Kouris
Κούρης

Garyllis
Γαρύλλης

Σχέδιο
Μουτταγιάκας
Moutayiaka
project

Ypsonas
project
Σχέδιο
Ύψωνα

Springs
Πηγές

Πλοία
Ships

Ayias Paraskevi
project
Σχέδιο
Αγίας Παρασκευής

Yermasoyia - March 2016

Yermasoyia - November 2017
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Water supply per source (m³)

2017 - 2016
14.000.000
12.000.000
10.000.000
8.000.000
6.000.000
4.000.000
2.000.000
0

Yermasoyia
boreholes

Kouris
boreholes

2017 m³

Limassol Water
Treatment
Plant
13.020.467

2.179.221

1.146.549

2016 m³

11.453.738

3.736.500

805.121

2017 - 2016
800.000
700.000
600.000
500.000
400.000
300.000
200.000
100.000
0

Moutayiaka
Ypsonas-Polem.
Σχέδιο
Σχέδιο ΎψωναProject
Project
Μουτταγιάκας
Πολεμιδιών
2017 m³
369.048
746.943
2016 m³

431.508

722.573

Springs
Πηγές
41.391

Ayia
Paraskevi
Σχέδιο
Αγίας
Project
Παρασκευής
58.792

26.923

66.841

2017

2016

Water supply
Limassol Water Treatment Plant
Yermasoyia boreholes
Kouris boreholes
Garyllis boreholes
Moutayiaka project
Ypsonas-Polemidia project
Springs
Ayia Paraskevi project
TOTAL
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m³
m³
13.020.467 11.453.738
2.179.221 3.736.500
1.146.549
805.121
0
0
369.048
431.508
746.943
722.573
41.391
26.923
58.792
66.841
17.562.411 17.243.204

Water quality monitoring
Both in 2016 and 2017, the required
chemical and bacteriological tests of water
samples taken from boreholes, springs and
the water supply network were carried out
by the State General Laboratory and the
Public Health Services of the Ministry of
Health. Overall, the tests have shown that
the water provided to consumers was
adequate in all aspects, pursuant to Laws
L87(I)/2001 and L275(Ι)/2004.

Furthermore, the WBL carried out daily tests on
water samples taken from water reservoirs of
various consumption points located within its
water supply area, aiming at observing and
monitoring chlorination levels. Overall, 2.000
chemical tests and 1.758 bacteriological tests
were carried out in 2016, and 1.586 chemical
tests and 2.915 bacteriological tests were carried
out in 2017. The aforementioned tests confirmed
the chlorine content that is required in water as a
precautionary measure.

Water sufficiency
Despite relatively low water reserves in the
dams, continuous water supply was
provided to consumers during the biennial
period in review.

Main activities
The main activities of the WBL are the following:
• Water supply for domestic, commercial and industrial purposes
• Water supply for fire-fighting purposes
• Recording water consumption and collecting water rates
• Installation of water supply facilities in new premises
• Extension of the main pipes of the water supply network
• Maintenance of network, supply and water meters

• Water supply to ships in Limassol Port
• Provision of services to the Sewerage Board of Lemesos – Amathus (invoicing and collecting
sewerage usage rates)
• Campaign for water conservation and reduction of leakages
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Water Supply Area
The Water Board of Lemesos supplies water to the Municipalities of Lemesos, Kato Polemidia,
Mesa Yitonia, Ayios Athanasios and Yermasoyia. Moreover, water is supplied to the Communities
of Pano Polemidia, Fasoula, Mathikoloni, Palodia, Tserkez Tsiftlik, Moutayiaka and Finikaria.
Within the framework of governmental policies, the Board aimed at extending its water supply
area in an attempt to gradually include most of the areas falling within the boundaries of the
greater Lemesos area.

Mathikoloni
Community

Palodia
Community

Pano Polemidia
Community

Fasoula
Community

Finikaria
Community

Ayios
Athanasios
Municipality

Moutayiaka
Community

Yermasoyia
Municipality

Kato
Polemidia
Lemesos
Municipality Municipality

Tserkez
Tsiftlik
Community
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Requests for repairs
In 2016, the Board was requested to respond to 3.610 cases and to proceed to the repair of
the water supply network or respond to other consumers’ requests accordingly. In 2017,
4.043 such cases were recorded.

Within three or
more days
13%

2016

Within two days
3%

The following
day
15%
On the same day
69%

Within three or
more days
10%

2017

Within two days
4%
The following
day
14%
On the same day
72%
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Water consumption from 1967 until 2017 per decade (m³)
14.000.000
12.000.000
10.000.000
8.000.000
6.000.000
4.000.000
2.000.000
0

1967

1977

1987

1997

2007

2017

Water
consumption
Κατανάλωση
νερού m³ 2.431.628 4.551.826 6.774.823 8.820.168 10.762.043 12.557.494

Number of consumers from 1967 until 2017 per decade (m³)

m³

120.000
100.000
80.000
60.000

40.000
20.000
0

1967

Number of Consumers 14.090

1977
20.515
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1987

1997

Year
41.219 54.026

2007

2017

74.404

101.575

Water consumption from 2012 until 2017 (m³)
13.000.000
12.500.000
12.000.000
11.500.000
11.000.000
10.500.000
10.000.000
9.500.000

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Consumption
Κατανάλωση 2012-2017 10.529.443 11.406.642 11.385.562 11.496.727 11.773.334 12.557.494

Number of consumers from 2012 until 2017 (m³)

104.000
102.000
100.000
98.000
96.000
94.000
92.000
90.000
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2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Έτος
Number of
Consumers
Αριθμός
καταναλωτών
94.348

97.395
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99.185

99.922

100.763 101.575

Maximum daily consumption from 2011 until 2017 (m³)

60.000
50.000
40.000
30.000

50.365

20.000

21/5/2011

46.667
14/7/2012

58.031

51.493

2/8/2013

7/10/2014

10.000
0
2011

2012

2013

2014

53.139

56.100

2/9/2015

6/8/2016

2015

2016

57.238

29/7/2017

2017

Average daily per capita consumption from 2011 until 2017 (ltr)
175
170
165
160
155
150
145
Μέση
ημερήσια
Average
daily perκατά
capitaκεφαλή
consumption
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Average daily domestic consumption (ltr)
295
290
285
280
275
270
265
260
255
250
245
Average
daily domestic
Μέση
ημερήσια
οικιακή
consumption
κατανάλωση

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

291

262

276

268

271

272

285
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Non-revenue water quantity (m3) from 1997 until 2017
6.000.000

28,50%
5.000.000
4.000.000

22,87%
3.000.000
2.000.000

16,40% 16,69%
12,09%

1.000.000
0
Μη
τιμολογημένη
ποσότητα
Non-revenue
water
νερού
quantity

1997

2002

2007

2012

2017

1.173.054

1.914.465

2.152.533

3.119.337

5.004.916

Non-revenue water quantity (m3) from 2010 until 2017

27,00%

24,18%

22,87%

28,44%
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31,08%

27,46%

31,72%

28,50%

Graph: Capital Expenditure from 2013 until 2017

€

1.118.767

1.097.312

706.055
605.778
434.422

2013

2014

2015
Έτος
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2016

Year

2017

Water conservation
Within the framework of its water conservation
campaign, the Water Board of Lemesos
continued to raise awareness on the relevant
provisions of the Law, both through press
releases to the media, as well as through
informative leaflets and brochures, sent by post
to the consumers along with their bills.

Special emphasis was given to the guided tours
of the Water Museum and the Centre of Water
Awareness Development. Thousands of
students and members of other organisations
visited the Museum and were given the
opportunity to learn about the correct use of
water and, generally, about the protection of
natural resources and the environment.

Telemetry
During 2016-2017, the telemetry systems of
the Board were expanded and, from now on,
they monitor 40 reservoirs, 37 pumping
stations and 94 central water meters. They
automatically control the water level of the
reservoirs, monitor the start/stop operation of
the pumps and they continuously record the
flow and pressure. These telemetry systems
have significantly contributed to the optimal
functioning of the central network, the
reduction of losses from the water supply

network through the timely detection of new
leakages in the network, the reduction of
operational costs and the improvement of the
quality of services provided to the consumers
of the Board. The telemetry systems will be
gradually developed in order to control more
central water meters, which will be installed
according to the review programme of the
existing water supply area.

Financial results
The financial results of the biennial period in
review recorded a surplus. For 2016, the
surplus amounted to €1.546.370 and for 2017
the surplus amounted to €2.924.447.

The detailed financial statements may be
found in Part B of the Report. The surplus is
mainly used to cover the capital expenditure of
the WBL.

Website
The website of the Board is regularly updated,
aiming at improving its design and content,
making it more flexible and user-friendly. The
website is available to the public for searching
information related to water, various technical
procedures, water-related competitions and
calls for entries launched by the WBL, as well
as educational matters.

Users may also find online any documents and
application forms that can be filled in and
submitted to the Board.

Water loss from the water supply network
The Board has intensified the implementation
of the water loss reduction plan by establishing
a second Water Leakage Detection Crew.
Water Leakage Detection Crews, with the help
of their equipment, detected 379 leakages in
2016 and 647 leakages in 2017. The nonrevenue water quantity in 2016 was 31,72%
and in 2017 28,50%.

Generally, the slight increase of non-revenue
water quantity observed during the period in
review was mainly due to the integration of
Yermasoyia Municipality and Moutayiaka and
Finikaria Communities in the WBL water supply
area, as well as to the negative effect of
desalinated water on the water supply
network.
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Five-year project planning
Depending on its financial capacity and should circumstances permit, the Water Board of
Lemesos is planning to carry out the following projects within the next five years:

No.

Project

1 Construction of reservoir and pumping station:
Ζ3 (Μesa Yitonia)
2 New reservoir in Paniotis (Yermasoyia)
3 Customer service offices
4 Construction of reservoir and pumping station:
Ζ9 (Fasoula)
5 Construction of reservoir: Ζ5 (Laiki Lefkothea)
6 Pilot AMR system initially for 1.000 water
meters
7 Construction of reservoir in Sykaminou (Ayios
Athanasios)
8 Construction of reservoir and pumping station
for Zone Ka8 - Kato Polemidia
9 Lemesos - Saittas road
10 Construction of reservoir and pumping station:
Ζ6 (Fasoula)
11 Construction of reservoir and pumping station
(Yermasoyia, nodal)
Total

Total estimated
Estimated
budget
completion
€
year
230.000
2020
600.000
1.122.000
230.000

2020
2020
2021

130.000
1.000.000

2021
2021

300.000

2022

150.000

2022

1.219.000
150.000

2022
2023

650.000

2023

5.781.000

Annual expenditure
€

Moreover, the following works and projects are
carried out annually:
Improvement of the central network
Urban development projects
Other projects
Total
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500.000
300.000
200.000
1.000.000

Statistical data
2017
1 Water supply
Limassol Water Treatment Plant
Kouris boreholes
Yermasoyia boreholes
Garyllis boreholes
Moutayiaka project
Ypsonas-Polemidia project
Ayia Paraskevi project
Springs

m³

2016

13.020.467
1.146.549
2.179.221
0
369.048
746.943
58.792
41.391
17.562.411

11.453.738
805.121
3.736.500
0
431.508
722.573
66.841
26.923
17.243.204

m³

48.116

47.241

m³

m³

10.517.833
1.982.437
12.500.270
57.130
94
12.557.494

9.952.468
1.759.449
11.711.917
61.417
167
11.773.501

3 Difference between supply and consumption (1-2)

m³

5.004.916

5.469.703

4 Population served (estimated)

no.

170.000

170.000

5 Daily per capita consumption based on annual supply

ltr

283

278

6 Actual daily per capita consumption based on domestic
use

ltr

170

155

57.238
29/7/2017

56.100
6/8/2016

100.808
767
101.575

100.029
734
100.763

267
2.343

120
2.076

m³
m³
m³
m³
m³
m³

Average daily water supply
2 Consumption
As recorded via the water meters of the premises:
Category: Domestic
Industrial
Total
Water supply to ships
Other consumption / sales
TOTAL

m³
m³
m³
m³

m³ / date

7 Maximum daily consumption

8 Number of consumers as at 31 December
Category: Domestic
Industrial
Total
9 Fire hydrants and valves
Installation of new hydrants
Total hydrants as at 31 December
Installation of new valves
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no.
no.
no.

Statistical data continued
10 Other operations:
New installations
Disconnections
Reconnections
Repairs of mains
Repairs of water supply
Replacement of switches
Water meter tests
Replacement of water meters

2017
no.

2016
868

633

5.013
462
3.205
195
54
8.000

3.821
342
2.875
175
81
7.440

44
29
20
93

44
29
20
93

2.000
2.758

1.586
2.915

no.
no.
no.
no.
no.
no.
no.

11 Personnel (as at 31 December)
Administrative personnel
Monthly-paid technicians and labour staff
Hourly-paid personnel
TOTAL

no.
no.
no.
no.

12 Tests
Chemical analyses
Bacteriological analyses

no.
no.

Comparative table –
Technical and accounting parameters of the past five years
Parameter
Total water supply
Total water consumption
Percentage of non-revenue water quantity
Number of consumers
Average daily consumption
Average daily per capita consumption
Maximum daily consumption
Total fire hydrants
Total valves
Length of piping system
Administrative personnel

Unit
m³
m³
%
no.
ltr
ltr
m³
no.
no.
km
no.

Monthly-paid technicians and labour staff

no.

Hourly-paid labour staff
Revenue
Expenses
Fixed asset turnover ratio
Capital expenditure

no.
€
€
%
€

2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
17.562.411 17.243.204 15.828.796 16.519.778 15.938.967
12.557.494 11.773.334 11.496.727 11.385.562 11.408.410
28,50
31,72
27,46
31,04
28,44
101.575
100.763
99.922
99.185
98.084
283
278
255
266
255
169
160
158
155
181
57.238
56.100
53.139
51.493
58.031
2.343
2.076
1.956
1.956
1.956
5.413
5.319
5.293
1.150
1.143
1.136
1.129
994
44
44
44
45
43
29

29

33

33

35

20
20
20
20
22
23.073.846 21.001.379 21.168.344 21.186.848 22.159.065
25.998.293 22.547.749 17.998.046 19.432.627 26.840.580
138,24
126,61
125,01
122,72
123,73
606.778 1.097.312 706.055
434.422 1.118.767
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Installation of new pipes

2016
Pipe
diameter
63mm
110mm
160mm
225mm
TOTAL

Pipe type
Plastic (uPVC)
Polyethylene m
m
272
5.615
1.332
18
5.887
1.350

Total
(m)
272
5.615
1.332
18
7.237

2017
Pipe type
Pipe
diameter
63mm
100mm
110mm
160mm
200mm
225mm
450mm
TOTAL

Ductile iron
m

Polyethylene m

Plastic
(uPVC)
m

792
12
9.505
3.837
175
396
42
229

792
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13.738

Total
(m)
792
12
9.505
3.837
175
396
42
14.759

WBL Construction works
During the second half of March 2016, one of
the WBL’s projects was the replacement of old
pipes (galvanized and asbestos cement) in
Gladstonos street.

In December 2017, construction works were
conducted for the transfer of a 450mm pipe
supplying water to Zone 2 of the WBL.
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The Water Museum in Venice
The Water Museum of the WBL was invited by
the United Nations Educational, Scientific and
Cultural Organisation (UNESCO), to participate in
the workshop titled “Towards a Global Network
of Water Museums”. The WBL was represented
by Clitos Paisanos, Senior Clerk Officer in charge
of the Water Museum, as well as by Marinos
Kyriakou, Mayor of Ayios Athanasios and
member of the WBL’s Board.
The workshop took place in Venice from the 1st
to the 4th of May 2017 under the auspices of
Unesco-IHP
(International
Hydrological
Programme).

During the workshop, various issues and topics of mutual
interest were discussed amongst the representatives of the
participating countries. Delegates were informed that
despite the small size of Cyprus, compared to other major
cities, there exists a Water Museum dedicated to the history
of water, having a diverse and rich activity in terms of
educational matters, exhibitions, competitions etc. During
the presentation of each Water Museum, participants
discussed best practices and various possibilities for
cooperation.
Important meetings with representatives
from other countries.

Visit of representatives from the Municipal Water
and Sewerage Company of Larissa (DEYAL)
In March 2017, representatives
from the Municipal Water and
Sewerage Company of Larissa
(DEYAL) visited the premises of
the Water Board of Lemesos,
where a Memorandum of
Cooperation was signed between
the WBL, the Sewerage Board of
Limassol-Amathus and DEYAL.
The cooperation between the aforementioned organisations
consists of exchanging experiences in terms of the management
of Water Boards, taking into account today’s technical and
socioeconomic conditions. Moreover, this includes their
common participation in European programmes and the
possibilities for further collaboration in various areas of mutual
interest.
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Mr Apostolos Kaloyiannis, Mayor of Larissa
lays a wreath at the Imprisoned Graves.

Presentation at Cyprus University of Technology

On Tuesday, 15th of March 2016, the Manager
of the WBL, Mr Socrates Metaxas, was invited

at Cyprus University of Technology to give a
presentation titled: “The role and mission of
the Water Board of Lemesos - Possibilities of
Collaboration with the Universities of Cyprus”.
The presentation was attended by professors,
students and guests of CUT.
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Stockholm Junior Water Prize (SJWP) International Competition
In 2016, Cyprus participated for the 6th
consecutive year in the Stockholm Junior Water
Prize international competition, which takes
place in Stockholm, Sweden within the
framework of the World Water Week
International Conference. In Cyprus, the
competition call is launched by the Water Board
of Lemesos as the national organiser.

The following year, in 2017, the Water Museum
launched the competition call for the seventh
consecutive year. From all participating schools,
the team of “The Heritage Private School” stood
out, consisting of Dimitris Karapanayiotis, Nicole
Papageorgiou
and
Ioannis
Theodorou,
accompanied by their teacher, Ms Despina
Kyriakoudi.

The 2016 competition, in which students from
29 different countries participated, was held
under the auspices of Prince Carl Philip of
Sweden. The team representing Cyprus
consisted of students from St Mary’s School of
Limassol, namely Alexandra Christofi, Thalia
Sofokleous and Maria Charalambous, under the
guidance of their teacher, Mrs Irini Papantoniou.

The students’ project aimed at investigating the
methane quantity produced by the biological
cleaning mechanism that recycles wastewater at
their school, as well as at examining ways of
collecting and using methane as a fuel for
electricity generation. Their team also examined
various ways of wastewater treatment, similar to
those applied by their school, and visited the
Wastewater Treatment Plant of the Sewerage
Board of Limassol - Amathus, which enabled them
to understand the relevant procedure.

With their project, the students proposed an
alternative method of water treatment used for
ships, called “ballast”, and explained why the
three main existing methods of water treatment
involve
practical
or
environmental
disadvantages. Moreover, they suggested water
treatment using silver nitrate (AgNO3) on
alumina (ΑΙ2Ο3) for eliminating bacterial growth
in water.

Thalia Sofokleous,
Alexandra Christofi

Maria

Charalambous

and
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The 2017 competition, in which students from 33
different countries participated, was held under
the auspices of Crown Princess Victoria of
Sweden.

Nicole Papageorgiou, Dimitris Karapanayiotis and
Ioannis Theodorou

World Water Day

On the 22nd of March, we celebrate the World
Water Day. This is a unique opportunity for the
Water Board of Lemesos, as well as for all water
and sewerage organisations across the world, to
inform and raise awareness amongst consumers,
both children and adults, about the planet’s most
precious resource: WATER.
In 2017, the World Water Day theme was
wastewater reuse, a degraded yet invaluable
resource. Given the problem of pollution and the
increasing demand for clean water, the reuse of
recycled waste as an alternative water source
becomes all the more important. “Grey water”,
which comes from domestic, industrial and other
activities is an important source of recoverable
water for agricultural needs.

Reusing water can become a useful tool for the
management of water resources, which becomes
increasingly necessary due to the decreased
rainfall of the past years, especially in the Southeastern Mediterranean region, where Cyprus is
located.
Finally, on the occasion of the World Water Day,
the Water Board of Lemesos calls upon its
consumers to continue and intensify their efforts
for water conservation, particularly today when
dam fullness levels are only at 20%.
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Project co-financed by the European Regional
Development Fund

CASTWATER European Programme
The CASTWATER project is part of the Interreg
Mediterranean European Programme.
Τhe programme aims at the rational management
and saving of water resources in the tourism sector
of the Mediterranean coastal areas. The programme
is expected to promote sustainable development
across the Mediterranean region through innovative
ideas and practices focusing on key sectors, such as
tourism, services and the proper management of
natural resources.
The lead partner of the project is the Municipality of
Rethymnon, accompanied by representatives from
the Water Board of Lemesos (Cyprus), Italy, Greece,
Spain, Croatia, Spain, France and Malta.
The Programme has a duration of 36 months, from
November 2016 until November 2019 and the total
budget amounts to €2.388.116 with a contribution
rate of €15% from all partners. The budget for the
WBL is €198.746, a contribution rate corresponding
to €29.812.

The WBL is the body responsible for data collection
and analysis (through questionnaires) related to the
water management method adopted by tourism
businesses (i.e. use of control tools, information
provided to customers/ tourism businesses on issues
related to appropriate water management, new
technologies, water saving measures etc.). The
aforementioned data will enable the establishment
of the needs of tourism businesses with regard to
water management, as well as their methods of
informing customers, employees working in the
tourism sector and competent public services.
The aforementioned obligation of the WBL has been
met.

An active participant in various European
Programmes, the Water Board of Lemesos
successfully organised in Limassol the 3rd meeting of
the three-year CASTWATER project (running from
1/11/2016 until 31/10/2019), financed by the
Interreg Mediterranean European Programme. The
Water Board of Lemesos, as a key partner of the
Project, hosted representatives from the Municipality
of Rethymnon - the lead partner - as well as
representatives from the remaining CASTWATER
partners: Emilia Romagna region (Italy), Veneto
region (Italy), University of Patras (Greece),
Euromediterranean Water Institute Foundation
(Spain), Institute of Agriculture and Tourism (Croatia),
InnDEA-Foundation Community (Spain), Department
of Council of Herault (France), Malta Regional
Development and Dialogue Foundation (Malta) and
Sustainable Energy and Water Conservation Unit
(Malta).
The CASTWATER project is of great importance since
it aims at the rational management and saving of
water resources in the tourism sector of the
Mediterranean coastal areas. (See previous page).
Through the participation of the WBL, Cyprus takes
part in a collective effort for the promotion of
sustainable development across the Mediterranean
region and the exchange of knowhow in an attempt
to create innovative ideas and practices in key
sectors, such as tourism, services and the proper
management of natural resources. More specifically,
the Project is expected to find rational solutions and
establish necessary policies that will improve the
use and management of water needs in the tourism
sector, as well as to design information and
awareness
programmes
both
for
tourism
professionals and competent public authorities.
The partners’ meeting, which was held in Limassol,
aimed at providing an overview of the first year’s
results, at coordinating the future activities of the
Project and at evaluating the contribution of the
partners in its progress to date.
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This specialised application, based on the user’s
geographic location, will be retrieving data from
the GIS, thus providing information on the
underground infrastructures of the specific
location. Information will be screened on an
augmented reality environment, giving details on
the underground infrastructures located within
the mobile camera’s field of view, regarding the
sewerage,
electricity,
telecommunications
networks etc. The user will also dispose of all
detailed descriptions of the mains (diameter,
material, position) located underground, in front
of the user, as well as safety-related information
for the maintenance crew (i.e. voltage of wires,
safe excavation distance) and preventive
measures in order to avoid damage on other
infrastructures that are likely to be affected (e.g.
disruption of telecommunication cables).

EPIRROI European Programme
EPIRROI European Programme is part of the
Interregional Cooperation Programmes “Interreg
V-A Greece – Cyprus 2014 - 2020”.
This Programme aims at establishing a Single
Water Network Monitoring System for detecting
and repairing leakages in the water supply
system.
The Project’s lead partner is the Department of
Electrical Engineering, Computer Engineering and
Informatics - Cyprus University of Technology and
for the Project’s implementation, the following
institutions will be collaborating: the Foundation
of Research and Technology of Crete, the Water
Board of Lemesos and the Municipal Enterprise of
Water Supply and Sewerage of Chersonisos in
Crete.
The programme has a duration of 24 months,
from November 2017 until November 2019, and
its total budget is €725.910,47, 85% of which is
funded by the European Union. The WBL’s budget
is €179.665,00 and its own contribution amounts
to 15%. To achieve its objectives, the Project will
be utilising measurements of special sensors
installed in selected areas within the water supply
network in order to timely detect leakages. The
measurements will be visualised on a GIS system
that will be analysing data and producing targets
in order to support policy-making on the
maintenance of the network and the
improvement of repairs.
Moreover, an augmented reality mobile device
application will be developed, serving as an
autonomous projection system of underground
infrastructures that will be supporting the repair
procedure.
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Within the framework of this project, equipment
will be purchased expanding the ability of the
partners to monitor and control their network.
During the pilot tests, the partners will install:
•
•
•
•

Controlled pressure-reducing valves
Automatic water meters
Pressure/flow sensors
Water quality sensors

SmartWater2020 European Programme
SmartWater2020 European Programme is part of
the Interregional Cooperation Programmes
“Interreg V-A Greece – Cyprus 2014 - 2020”.

Moreover, innovative sensors will be developed
and tested, which will be floating in the water
supply network in order to monitor the state of
the mains.

The objective of the project titled “Smart Water
Supply Networks for Reducing Water Loss”
(SmartWater2020) is the smart management of
available water quantities and saving of resources
for ensuring water sustainability.

Within the framework of SmartWater2020, an
online platform will be established, connecting
the existing systems of water management
organisations with the new systems that will be
purchased.

The Project’s lead partner is the University of
Cyprus (KIOS Research and Innovation Center of
Excellence), and for the Project’s implementation,
the following institutions will be collaborating: the
Water Board of Lemesos, the Water Development
Department, the Water Board of Larnaca, the
Foundation of Research and Technology of Crete
and the Municipal Water Supply and Sewerage
Company of Malevizi.

The Project’s most innovative feature is the
platform’s ability to evaluate methods developed
by the research community for the analysis of
large amount of data resulting from these
systems, for the evaluation of the state of the
water supply network, the identification of
problems in real time, the optimum control of
pressure in the system and the establishment of a
more efficient communication between various
systems.

The programme has a duration of 30 months,
from December 2017 until May 2020, and has a
total budget of €907.000,00, 85% of which is
funded by the European Union.
To achieve its objectives, the Programme will
develop a smart software and smart devices for
monitoring the operation of the water supply
network, as well as for detecting possible
leakages and water quality issues in real time.
Furthermore, an innovative system for
monitoring in real time the pressure of the water
supply network will also be developed, aiming to
reduce damages and minimise water loss.
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Meeting with the Minister of Agriculture, Rural Development and Environment

On the 17th of May 2017, a meeting was held
between members of the Board of Directors,
the Manager of the WBL and the Minister of
Agriculture,
Rural
Development
and
Environment, Mr Nicos Kouyalis, to discuss
issues of mutual interest.

Seminar on Tender Regulations
On Monday, 3rd of April 2017, a seminar took place
at the premises of the Water Board of Lemesos
titled “Tender Regulations”. The seminar was
presented by the representative of the Accountant
General of the Republic, Mr Philippos Katranis.
The seminar was attended by representatives from
the Water Boards of Lemesos, Nicosia and Larnaca,
representatives from the Municipalities of Kato
Polemidia, Mesa Yitonia and Ayios Athanasios, as
well as Mrs Iliana Tofa, Senior Executive Engineer
of the Water Development Department, and Mr
Michalis Sokratous, Member of the Municipal
Council of Limassol.

Staff trainings
Health and Safety
On the 23rd of October 2017, an educational
seminar took place on the occasion of the
European Week for Health and Safety at Work,
addressed to the technical and labour staff of
the WBL.

First Aid
On the 24th of October 2017, a special first aid
training programme took place.
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Christmas and New Year’s
Party 2017
On the 29th of December 2017, the last working
day of the year, a party was held at the premises

of the WBL, to celebrate Christmas and welcome
the New Year. Mr Marios Alexandrou, Lemesos
District Officer and Chairman of the WBL,
together with Members of the Board of
Directors, attended the party and exchanged
season’s greetings with the personnel of the
WBL.

Mr Charalambos Ttavas found the lucky
coin in Vasilopita.
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PART B
Financial Statements

External auditors:

Grant Thornton (Cyprus) Ltd
Certified Public Accountants and Registered Auditors
Agiou Nicolaou Street 41 – 49
Nimeli Court, Block C
P.O.Box 23907
1687, Lefkosia, Cyprus

Legal Consultants:

Chrysses Demetriades & Co LLC

Registered office:

66, Franklin Roosevelt Avenue, 3012 Lemesos
P.O.Box 50225
3602 Lemesos, Cyprus

Grant Thornton
(Cyprus) Limited

External Auditor’s Report to the
Members of the Board of
Directors of the Water Board of
Lemesos

41-49 Agiou Nicolaou Street
Nimeli Court – Block C
2408 Engomi, Nicosia
P.O.Box 23907
1687 Nicosia
Cyprus

Report on the audit of Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of the
Water Board of Lemesos (‘the Board’), a Legal
Entity under Public Law, which are presented in
pages 5 to 35 and comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2017, the
statements of profit or loss, comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flow for the
year ended on this date, as well as the notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the attached financial statements
give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Water Board of Lemesos as at 31 December
2017 and its financial performance and cash flow
for the year ended on this date, in accordance with
the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs), as adopted by the European Union and the
requirements of the Companies Law of Cyprus,
Cap. 113.
Basis of opinion
Our audit was performed in accordance with the
International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities, pursuant to such standards, are
further described in the paragraph Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements of our report. We are independent of
the Board, in accordance with the Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants (IESBA code) and the ethics
requirements about the audit of financial
statements in Cyprus, and we have complied with
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all other ethical responsibilities arising from such
requirements and the IESBA code. We believe
that the audit evidence acquired is sufficient and
adequate to constitute the basis of our audit
opinion.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the
Financial Statements
The Board of Directors is responsible for
preparing the financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, the
requirements of the Companies Law of Cyprus,
Cap. 113, and for such internal control as the
Board of Directors deems necessary in order to
enable the preparation of the financial
statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud.
During the preparation of the financial
statements, the Board of Directors is responsible
for assessing the Board’s ability to continue its
business, disclosing, when deemed necessary,
matters about the continuation of the
Organisation’s business and the adoption of the
going concern basis of accounting, unless the
Board of Directors either intends to put the
Organisation in liquidation or cease its activities,
or is left with no realistic alternative options than
to proceed to such actions.
The Board of Directors is responsible for
overseeing the Organisation’s financial reporting
process.

External Auditor’s Report to the
Members of the Board of
Directors of the Water Board of
Lemesos (continued)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.
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• Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Board’s internal control.
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Board of Directors.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board
of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Board’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Board to cease to continue as a
going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure
and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that
achieves true and fair presentation.

External Auditor’s Report to the
Members of the Board of
Directors of the Water Board of
Lemesos (continued)
We communicate with the Board of Directors
regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
Other matter
This report, including the opinion, has been
prepared for and only the Board, as a body,
pursuant to Article 69 of the Auditors Law of
Cyprus of 2017 and for no other purpose
whatsoever. We do not, in giving this opinion,
accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whose
knowledge this report may come to.

George Pouros
Certified Public Accountant and Registered Auditor
for and on behalf of
Grant Thornton (Cyprus) Ltd
Certified Public Accountants and Registered
Auditors
Lefkosia 3rd June 2019

Millomeris water falls at Platres area
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Statement of financial position
31 December 2017

Note

2017

2016

€

€

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

5

16.691.320

16.586.983

16.691.320

16.586.983

Current assets
Inventories

7

912.063

1.179.980

Trade and other receivables

8

4.965.248

4.441.578

Available-for-sale financial assets

6

633.590

721.157

Cash and cash equivalents of the Pension Scheme and the Board

9

29.275.626

25.880.213

35.786.527

32.222.928

52.477.847

48.809.911

Other reserves

(2.020.616)

(3.375.433)

Accumulated profit

6.047.833

3.500.652

Total equity

4.027.217

125.219

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Non-current liabilities
Deferred income

12

530.143

396.202

Retirement benefit liabilities

10

24.717.422

25.828.486

25.247.565

26.224.688

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

11

22.827.718

22.425.878

Deferred income

12

202.193

34.126

Current tax liabilities

173.154

-

23.203.065

22.460.004

Total liabilities

48.450.630

48.684.692

Total equity and liabilities

52.477.847

48.809.911

On the

3rd

June 209, the Water Board of Lemesos approved these financial statements for issue.

Phryne Potamou
Head of Financial
Services
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Statement of Profit or Loss
31 December 2017

Note

2017
€

2016
€

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit

13
14

19.821.386
(12.742.861)
7.078.525

18.597.753
(12.354.728)
6.243.025

Other income
General expenses
Administrative expenses
Profit from operations
Finance income
Finance costs
Loss from investing activities
Profit before tax
Tax expense
Profit for the year

15
16
18

3.252.460
(6.584.558)
(516.963)
3.229.464
318.033
(54.417)
(87.567)
3.405.513
(481.066)
2.924.447

2.403.626
(6.498.317)
(463.437)
1.684.897
311.211
(47.290)
(309.067)
1.639.751
(93.381)
1.546.370

20
20
21
22

Notes on pages 49 to 75 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Water Board of Lemesos

Statement of comprehensive income
Year ended 31 December 2017

Note
Profit for the year

2017
€

2016
€

2.924.447

1.546.370

1.354.817
1.354.817

(1.801.654)
(1.801.654)

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Revaluation of the defined benefits pension scheme

10

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets – Change in fair value

6

-

(51.511)
(51.511)

Reclassifications to profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets – Impairment loss reclassified to profit
or loss

21

-

309.067
309.067

Other comprehensive income

1.354.817

(1.544.098)

Comprehensive income for the year

4.279.264

2.272

Notes on pages 49 to 75 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of changes in equity
Year ended 31 December 2017

At 1 January 2016
Total income
Net profit for the year
Change in fair value
Revaluation of the defined benefits
pension scheme
Reclassificatio-n of impairment losses
to the profit or loss
Total income
Other transactions
Defence contribution on deemed
dividend

At 31 December 2016
Total income
Net profit for the year
Revaluation of the defined benefits
pension scheme
Total income
Other transactions
Defence contribution on deemed
dividend
At 31 December 2017

Fair value reserve –
Available-for-sale
financial assets
€
(257.556)

(51.511)
309.067
257.556

-

-

Actuarial
(loss)/gain
€
(1.573.779)

(1.801.654)
(1.801.654)

(3.375.433)

-

Accumulated
profit
€
2.111.338

Total
€
280.003

1.546.370
-

1.546.370
(51.511)

-

(1.801.654)

1.546.370

309.067
2.272

(157.056)
(157.056)

(157.056)
(157.056)

3.500.652

125.219

2.924.447

2.924.447

-

1.354.817
1.354.817

2.924.447

1.354.817
4.279.264

-

(2.020.616)

(377.266)
(377.266)
6.047.833

(377.266)
(377.266)
4.027.217

Public Law Companies and Organisations which do not distribute 70% of their profit after tax, as
determined by the Special Contribution for the Defence of the Republic Law, within the two years
following the end of the year of assessment to which the profits refer, will be deemed to have distributed
such amount as dividend. A 17% special defence contribution will be payable on such deemed dividend
distribution. The amount of the deemed dividend distribution is reduced by the amount of any actual
dividend already distributed for the year to which the profits refer. This special defence contribution is
paid by the Board.

Notes on pages 49 to 75 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cash flow statement
Year ended 31 December 2017

2017

2016

€

€

3.405.513

1.639.751

Note
Operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

5

992.888

951.347

Loss / (gain) from sale of property, plant and equipment

5

87

(4.476)

Impairment loss of available-for-sale financial assets

6

87.567

309.067

808.698

762.896

(318.033)

(311.211)

4.976.720

3.347.374

Retirement benefits
Credit interest income

20

Changes in working capital:
267.917

(222.685)

(523.670)

219.914

Trade and other payables

401.840

463.819

Deferred income

302.008

(34.126)

Cash flow from operations

5.424.815

3.774.296

Taxes paid

(307.912)

Inventories
Trade and other receivables

Payments related to provisions

10

Net cash from operating activities

-

(564.945)

(93.381)

4.551.958

3.680.915

(1.097.312)

(605.778)

Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

5

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

5

318.033

Interest received

-

Pension Fund movement
Net cash used in investing activities

5.120
311.211
(821.447)

(779.279)

(1.110.894)

Defence contribution on deemed dividend paid

(377.266)

(157.056)

Net cash from (used in) financing activities

(377.266)

(157.056)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

3.395.413

2.412.965

25.880.213

23.467.248

29.275.626

25.880.213

Financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents:
At the beginning of the year
At the end of the year

9

Notes on pages 49 to 75 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2017
1. Incorporation and principal activities

2. Basis of Preparation

1.1 Incorporation
The Water Board of Lemesos (the “Board”) is a
Legal Entity under Public Law, incorporated in
Cyprus following a decree of the Council of
Ministers, published on the 22nd of May 1951
under the Water Supply (Municipal and Other
Areas) Law, Cap. 350, and operates in
accordance with its Regulations, as approved by
the Council of Ministers. Its registered office is
located at 66 Franklin Roosevelt, P.O. Box
50225, 3602, Limassol, Cyprus.

1.2 principal activity

The present financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), as
adopted by the European Union and the
requirements of the Water Supply (Municipal
and Other Areas) Law.
These financial statements have been prepared
on an accrual basis (except the cash flow
information), using the significant accounting
policies and measurement bases summarised
in note 3, as well as the assumption of a going
concern.

3. Accounting policies

The principal activities of the Board, which
remained unchanged compared to the previous
year, is the supply of drinking water to
Municipalities and Communities of the greater
urban area of Lemesos, by imposing fees and
water rates in order to ensure the financing of
development projects and the operation of the
Board (on a non-profit-making basis), the
maintenance and expansion of the water supply
network, the planning and execution of essential
technical construction works, while fully
respecting the environment, as well as the
upgrading of the quality of services provided to
the consumers.
The Organisation’s principal business activities
take place in the district of Lemesos.

The principal accounting policies and
measurement bases used in the preparation of
these financial statements are mentioned
below. These policies have been applied
consistently for all periods presented in these
financial statements, unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Adoption of new and revised IFRSs
As of 1 January 2016, the Board adopted all the
new or revised IFRSs (and the relevant
amendments or interpretations), which
became applicable and were also approved by
the European Union, relating to its operations.
This adoption did not have a material effect on
the financial statements of the Board.
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Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2017
The following IFRSs (including the relevant revisions and interpretations) were issued on the date of
approval of these financial statements, but are still not effective or have not yet been approved by the EU,
for the year ended 31 December 2017:
Approved

Effective date

by the EU

(IASB)



IFRS 9: “Financial Instruments”

Yes

1 January 2018



IFRS 14: “Regulatory Deferral Accounts”

No

1 January 2016



IFRS 15: “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

Yes

1 January 2018



IFRS 16: “Leases”

Yes

1 January 2019



IFRS 17: “Insurance contracts”

No

1 January 2021



IFRIC 22: “Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance

Yes

1 January 2018

Consideration”


IFRIC 23: “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments”

No

1 January 2019



Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Yes

1 January 2018



Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

No

1 January 2019



Amendment to IFRS 2: “Classification and Measurement of Share-

Yes

1 January 2018

Yes

1 January 2018

Yes

1 January 2019

No

undetermined

Based Payment Transactions”


Amendment to IFRS 4: “Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
within IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts”



Amendment to IFRS 9: “Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation”



Amendment to IFRS 10, and IAS 28: “Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture”



Clarifications to IFRS 15: “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

Yes

1 January 2018



Amendment to IAS 19: “Plan Amendment, Curtailment or

No

1 January 2019

No

1 January 2019

Settlement”


Amendment to IAS 28: “Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures”



Amendment to IAS 40: “Transfers of Investment Property”

Yes

1 January 2018



Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (Revised)

No

1 January 2020

The Board expects that the adoption of the above IFRSs in future periods will not have a material effect on

the financial statements of the Board, except as described below.
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Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2017
IFRS 9 ''Financial Instruments''
IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” replaces IAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”. The new standard makes
major changes to the guidance of IAS 39
regarding the classification and measurement
of financial assets and introduces a new
“expected credit loss” model for the
impairment of financial assets. IFRS 9 also
provides new guidelines on the application of
hedge accounting.

It also determines the requirements concerning
the accounting of the asset and the financial
liability, including complex matters such as outof-lease elements, changing lease rates and
selection periods, sale and leaseback contracts,
and introduces new disclosure requirements.
IFRS 16 includes exceptions for short-term and
low-value asset leases.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment
Management has determined that the
principal sector expected to be majorly
impacted by the application of IFRS 9 concerns
the fact that impairment for expected credit
losses will need to be recognised for the
financial assets of the Board, which are
presented at amortised cost and any
investments in debt instruments, except if
they were classified at fair value through the
profit or loss, in accordance with the new
criteria.

IFRS 15 ''Revenue from contracts with
customers''
IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” presents new guidelines on the
recognition of revenue and replaces IAS 18
“Revenue”, IAS 11 “Construction Contracts”
and various interpretations concerning
revenue. The new standard sets a revenue
recognition model based on an audit model
and offers additional guidelines on many
sectors which are not covered in detail under
the current IFRSs, including arrangements with
multiple product delivery or service provision
liabilities, variable pricing, customer return
rights, supplier repurchase options and other
common complications.
IFRS 16 ''Leases''
IFRS 16 requires lessees to present leases in
their financial position in the form of a right-ofuse asset and a financial liability, and also
changes the definition of a lease.
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Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historic cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses.
Gain and losses from the disposal of property,
plant and equipment are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised in the profit or loss.
Depreciations
Depreciations are recognised on a straight-line
basis to derecognise the cost of each property,
plant and equipment during its expected useful
life. The annual depreciation rates are as
follows:










Buildings and water reservoirs
Springs and boreholes
Water meters
Computer hardware and
software
Tools and equipment
Machinery and plant
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Pipe network

%
3
10
15
33,33
15
10
20
10
2,5

No depreciation is provided on land.
The residual value and useful life are reviewed and
adjusted at each reporting date, if deemed
necessary.

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2017
Repair, maintenance and renovation

• Operating leases

Expenditure for repair and maintenance of
property, plant and equipment is charged to
profit or loss in the year in which it is incurred.
The cost of major improvements and
renovations and other subsequent expenditure
is included in the carrying amount of the asset
when the recognition criteria of IAS 16 are met.
The major improvements and renovations
included in the carrying amount of the asset are
depreciated over the remaining useful life of the
relevant asset.

The Board as a lessee

3.3 Impairment of non-financial assets

3.5 Financial instruments

At each reporting date, the Board tests the
carrying amount of tangible assets with a
definite useful life to determine whether there is
an indication that such assets have incurred an
impairment loss. If such indication is identified,
the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is impossible to
estimate the recoverable value of an individual
asset, the Board estimates the recoverable value
of the cash-generating unit (CGU) the asset
appertains to.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when the Board becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the financial
instrument.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the carrying amount of an asset (or a
CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use
(present value of estimated future cash flows) of
the asset (or the GCU). An impairment loss is
immediately recognised in the profit or loss.
3.4 Leases

Leases are treated as financing leases when, in
accordance with the lease terms, substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the leased asset are transferred
to the lessee. Leases where an important part
of the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership remain to the lessor, are treated as
operating leases.
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The lease payments in the case of an operating
lease are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
The benefits received or to be received as an
incentive to conclude an operating lease
contract, as well as advance payments and any
other charges, are recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Financial assets
Financial assets are initially recognised at fair
value, plus the transaction cost for all financial
assets which are not presented at fair value
through the profit or loss. Purchases and sales
of financial assets based on a normal delivery
contract are recognised on the date the
transaction is conducted, which is the date on
which the Board is bound to purchase or sell
the asset.
A financial asset is derecognised:
1. when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire, or
2. when the contractual rights to the cash
flows of the asset are reserved, but a
contractual liability is assumed for the
payment of cash flows as a third party, or
3. when the contractual rights to the cash
flows of the asset are transferred or a
contractual liability is assumed to pay the
cash flows to a third party, and: either (a)
substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the asset are
transferred, or (b) substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of the
asset were neither transferred nor
reserved, but its control was not retained.

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2017

Loans and receivables

Financial liabilities

Loans and receivables are initially recognised at
fair value plus the transaction cost, and carried,
subsequently, at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Financial liabilities constitute liabilities for
payment in cash or other financial assets.
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value, after deducting the relevant transaction
costs, and carried, subsequently, at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

(i) Trade and other receivables
Appropriate
provisions
concerning
estimated non-recoverable amounts are
recognised in the profit or loss when there
exists objective evidence that the asset was
impaired. The recognised provision is
measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the effective interest rate
which was applicable at the time of the
initial recognition.

A financial liability is derecognised when it is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

The difference between the carrying amount of
a swapped financial liability from another one
with substantially different terms, is treated as
a repayment of the initial financial liability and
a recognition of the new financial liability.

Trade and other liabilities

(ii) Bank deposits
Appropriate
provisions
concerning
estimated non-recoverable amounts are
recognised in the profit or loss when there
exists objective evidence that the bank
deposit was impaired. The recognised
provision is measured as the difference
between the deposit’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future
cash flows. The discount factor for fixed
interest rate deposits is the effective
interest rate which was calculated during
the initial recognition, and, for floating
interest rate deposits, it is the last effective
interest rate applicable prior to the
impairment.
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Trade and other liabilities are initially
measured at fair value and carried,
subsequently, at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. In case such
liabilities are short-term, the amount due net
of discount is considered to be the fair value.

3.6 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, together with
short-, fixed-term deposits.

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2017
Water sales
3.7 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or
net realisable value. The cost is determined
using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the costs
to completion and selling expenses.
The cost of water supplies at the beginning and
the end of the year is not presented in the
financial statements due to the fact that it is
difficult to reliably estimate the quantity of
water in the water supply network.
3.8 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Board has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
an obligation, and a reliable estimate of the
amount can be made. When the Board expects
a provision to be reimbursed, for example
under
an
insurance
contract,
the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate
asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain.
3.9 Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or to be received, net of
discounts and indirect income taxes.
Revenue is recognised when the revenue
amount can be reliably measured, it is
probable that the financial benefits deriving
from the transaction will be enjoyed by the
Board, the costs which resulted or which will
result may be reliably measured, and also
when the criteria for each different activity of
the Board are met. These recognition criteria
which are specific to the activities are
described below:
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Water sales are recognised when major risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of the
water are transferred to the consumer based
on four-month readings.
Land and building area subdivision fees
The income from the subdivision of land and
building areas is recognised with the approval
of the Board for the supply of water in order to
utilise the land and the building area.

Income from connection fees
The income from connection fees is recognised
with the installation of water meters in the
consumer’s premises. Fees mainly related with
reconnection and transfer are recognised upon
completion of the relevant work.
Departmental charges
Departmental charges are recognised upon
completion of the work carried out by the
Board for the consumers, by governmental
departments or other organisations.
Additional charges
Revenues resulting from additional charges are
imposed on consumers who do not settle their
water bills, immediately after their due date,
on their next bill.
Commission income
Commission income is recognised when the
right of the Board to receive such income is
established.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised based on the
principal amount outstanding and the
appropriate effective interest rate which is the
interest rate that discounts exactly the
expected future cash flows, which are expected
to flow in throughout the asset’s life cycle, so
that they equate with the asset’s net carrying
amount.

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2017
3.10 Pension benefits’ cost
Defined contribution plan
The Board operates a defined contribution plan
the assets of which are held in a separate,
trustee-administered fund. The plan is funded
by contributions of the Board and its
employees.
Government pension schemes
Contributions to government pension schemes
or pension funds (eg. National Social Insurance
Fund) are treated like contributions to defined
benefit schemes, when the Board’s liabilities to
such funds are equal to those resulting from
the defined benefit schemes due to retirement.
The Board’s contributions are derecognised for
the period they relate to and are included in
the personnel cost. The Board has no legal or
constructive obligation to pay additional
contributions if the government scheme does
not hold enough assets to pay to all employees
the benefits corresponding to their service
during the current and previous periods.

The cost of service for the defined benefit
scheme is included in the personnel cost. The
gain and losses resulting from other
adjustments of the liability are included in
other comprehensive income.

The actuarial deficit is directly recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The
liability entered in the Statement of Financial
Position is the actuarial deficit plus the current
cost to cover the vesting, plus the expected
return against the current value of the
commitment for the defined benefit, less the
expected return on the fund’s assets. The
Board has guaranteed the insurance of its
market value and, for this purpose, it has
invested, based on the actuarial report, the
amount required. The last actuarial finance
report was carried out for the period ended 31
December 2015. For finance purposes, a new
actuarial report is prepared each three-year
period.

Defined benefit scheme
The defined benefit scheme determines a lump
sum, payable upon termination of the
employees’ service, which takes into account
factors such as the years of employment and
the salary of the employee. The liability
recognised in relation to the defined benefit
scheme is the current value of the liability for
pension benefits at the reporting date.

The current value of these benefits is
determined using the projected unit credit
method based on the estimations of actuarial
studies, carried out at each reporting date.

3.11 Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the Board’s financial
statements are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which
the Board operates (“the functional currency”).
The financial statements are presented in euro
(€), which is the Board’s functional and
presentation currency.
3.12 Taxation
Income tax expense represents the current tax.
The tax currently payable is based on the
taxable profit for the year. The taxable profit
differs from the profit which appears in the
profit or loss, because the taxable profit does
not include the proceeds or expenses which
are taxable or deductible in other financial
years, nor does it include funds which are
never taxed or deductible.
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Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2017

Current economic conditions

The Board’s liability regarding the current tax is
calculated in accordance with the applicable
tax rates or those that are substantively
enacted by the reporting date.
The current tax assets and tax liabilities can be
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against tax
liabilities, as well as when they relate to the
same taxing authority and, in addition, the
Board intends to settle the tax assets and
liabilities which are offset at the net resulting
amount.

4. Critical accounting estimates and use of
judgment
The preparation of these financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires the use of
accounting estimates and assumptions, and
requires Management to exercise its judgment
in the process of applying the Board's
accounting policies.
Both estimates and assumptions, as well as the
judgment exercised are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Although these estimates,
assumptions and judgment exercised are based
on Management's best knowledge of current
events and actions, actual results may
ultimately differ.
4.1 Important
Management

use

of

judgment

by

The critical judgments exercised by the Board in
the application of the Organisation’s accounting
policies with the greatest impact on the
financial statements are presented below:
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The Board has assessed whether any
impairment provisions are deemed necessary
for any of the assets, be it of financial nature or
not, by examining the financial position and
outlook at the reporting date, as described in
the note. Based on the assessment made, any
additional impairment provisions or charges
are deemed unnecessary at the reporting date.
Income recognition
The Board applies the provisions of IAS 18 for
the accounting of sales where the proceeds
and cost of sale are recognised upon delivery
and the completion of the transfer of risks to
the purchaser for each separable product
delivery or service provision.
Furthermore, in order to determine the time of
recognition of the income from the after-sale
services, both the nature and the time frame of
the provided services, as well as of the
expected use of such services by the clients
must be understood, based on historical
experience and market knowledge.
Retirement benefits
The cost of defined benefit pension plans is
determined using actuarial valuations. The
actuarial
valuation
involves
making
assumptions about discount rates, expected
rate of return on plan assets, future salary
increases, mortality rates and future pension
benefits increases where necessary. The Board
sets these assumptions based on market
expectations at the reporting date, using best
estimates for each parameter, covering the
period over which obligations are to be settled.
Due to the long-term nature of these plans,
such estimates are subject to significant
uncertainty.

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2017
Leases

Review of the impairment of receivables

In some cases, lease transactions and/or lease
contracts do not lead to clear conclusions
regarding the leases’ classification pursuant to
IAS 17, and Management exercises its
judgment to determine whether each lease is a
finance lease which transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership,
or an operating lease.
Classification of financial instruments
Management exercises significant judgment in
determining the appropriate classification of
the Board’s financial instruments, especially
with respect to investments and the separation
of any integrated derivatives. The factors which
are taken into account include the terms and,
especially, the characteristics of the financial
instrument which are examined with due
attention, as well as the intentions and needs
of the financial assets with respect to liquidity
or the repayment of the Board’s financial
obligations.

The Board follows IAS 39 in determining when
a bad debt is impaired. This determination
requires significant judgement with respect to
the current and possible future financial
circumstances of the debtor, as well as their
current and future repayment ability.
Contingent liabilities
The Board exercises significant judgment in
examining whether a specific situation arises
from a current liability and in determining the
possibility of such a liability leading to an
outflow of financial resources. Based on these
conclusions, it is decided whether a liability
provision will be recognised.
4.2 Estimation uncertainty
The estimates and assumptions that may cause
an important adjustment of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities are provided
below:

Review of the impairment of available for sale
financial assets

Taxation

The Board follows the guidance of IAS 39 in
determining when an investment is impaired.
This determination requires significant
judgement. In making this judgement the
Board evaluates, among other factors, the
duration and extent to which the fair value of
an investment is less than its cost and the
financial health and near-term business
outlook for the investee, including factors such
as industry and sector performance, changes in
technology and operational and financing cash
flow.

To determine the corporate tax provision
important estimations are required. For certain
transactions
and
calculations,
the
determination of the final tax is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The
Board recognises liabilities concerning the
expected taxation issues based on calculations
about whether any additional tax might arise.
When the final tax result of these issues differs
from the amount which was originally
recognised, the differences affect the
corporate tax liability for the period for which
said determination was made.
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Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2017
Useful lives of assets

Retirement benefit liability

The Board examines the useful lives of assets at
each reporting date and reviews them when
necessary, so that useful lives represent the
expected utility of the Board’s assets. However,
actual results may vary due to technological
obsolescence, misuse and other factors which
are not easily predictable.

The benefit cost for defined benefit plans is
calculated based on actuarial estimations
which use assumptions about discount rates,
future salary increases, mortality rates and
future pension benefits increases where
necessary. The Board makes these
assumptions with the help of independent
professional actuaries. Due to the long-term
nature of these plans, such estimates are
subject to significant uncertainty.

Review of the impairment of receivables
The Board examines the existence of
indications concerning the possibility to receive
amounts due from commercial and other
debtors. The indications on which the
impairment provision for bad debtors relies is
the debtor’s repayment history and financial
situation. In the occurrence of such indications,
the recoverable amount is estimated and a
corresponding impairment provision is made.
The credit risk is revised continuously and the
methodology and assumptions for the
calculation of the impairment provision are
examined regularly and adapted accordingly.

See note 8 of the financial statements for
further details.
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See note 10 of the financial statements for
further details.
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5. Property plant and equipment

Year ended 31 December 2017

Notes to the financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2017
Depreciation for the year has been recognised in the profit or loss as follows:

General expenses

2017
€
992.888
992.888

2016
€
951.347
951.347

(87)
(87)

644
4.476
5.120

721.157
(87.567)
633.590

772.668
(51.511)
721.157

5.1 Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment
In the cash flow statement, proceeds from the sale of property, plant
and equipment comprise:
Net book amount
(Loss) / gain from the sale of property, plant and equipment (Note15)

Water Board of Lemesos

6. Available-for-sale financial assets

Notes
to the financial statements
At 1 January
charge 2017
YearImpairment
ended 31 December
At 31 December

The Board’s available-for-sale financial assets are analysed as follows:

Bank of Cyprus Holdings plc shares – Board
Bank of Cyprus Holdings plc shares –
Retirement benefits fund

Carrying
value
2017
€
373.337

Initial cost
2017
€
15.176

260.253
633.590

10.579
25.755

Carrying
value
Initial cost
2016
2016
€
€
424.935
607.050
296.222
721.157

423.174
1.030.224

Τhe following are included in the profit or loss in relation to the available-for-sale financial assets:
2017
€
(87.567)
(87.567)

Impairment charge
Net loss

2016
€
(309.067)
(309.067)

The Bank of Cyprus shares were granted in return for converting a part of uninsured deposits at the
Bank into shares. To that end, the Board was granted 5.151.120 Class A shares with a nominal value
of €1 each, with effect from 30 July 2013, of which 2.115.871 shares relate to WBL employee
retirement
benefits.
On 19/1/2017, Bank of Cyprus (Holdings) PLC shares were granted in return for Bank of Cyprus
shares. The nominal value of the shares is €0,10. However, the average purchase price was set to €20
and, therefore, the WBL today holds 257.557 shares, of which 105.794 relate to WBL employee
retirement benefits.
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Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2017
7. Inventories
2017
€
930.057
5.129
(23.123)
912.063

Pipes
Other inventories
Provision for slow-moving inventory

2016
€
1.197.182
4.947
(22.149)
1.179.980

Inventories are stated at cost value.
Warehouse materials, which are stated at cost value, are not available for sale in accordance with
the Board’s ordinary trade activities, but are considered to be consumables the Board uses to
produce the final product, and they are derecognised from the statements of profit or loss according
to the financial year.
8. Trade and other receivables
Financial assets
Water consumers
Sewerage consumers
Less: Provision for impairment losses
Net trade receivables
Other receivables
Non-financial assets
Deposits and prepayments
Deposits for execution of works
Water
Board of
Lemesos
Recoverable
VAT

2017
€
2.770.319
789.044
(129.138)
3.430.225
84.072
3.514.297

2016
€
2.591.341
765.792
(107.081)
3.250.052
92.999
3.343.051

916.735
534.216
4.965.248

572.320
459.955
66.252
4.441.578

Notes to the financial statements

The other receivables mentioned above relate to bank interests from deposits which were received

Year
endedthe
31 December
2017
during
year ended
31 December 2017, but concerned the period up to 31 December 2016.

8.1 Impaired balances
The Board recognised a loss amounting to €22.057 (2016: €8.593) for the impairment of trade
receivables during the year ended 31 December 2017.
Provision for impairment losses
2017
€
107.081
22.057
129.138

At 1 January
Charge for the year
At 31 December
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2016
€
98.488
8.593
107.081

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2017

9. Cash and cash equivalents of the Pension Scheme and the Board
9.1 Sight deposits in banks

Cash at hand
Sight deposits in banks (Note 9.2)

9.2 Sight deposits in banks
Of the Pension Scheme
Of the Board

2017
€
41.050
29.234.576
29.275.626

2016
€
27.530
25.852.683
25.880.213

19.299.021
9.935.555
29.234.576

18.427.450
7.425.233
25.852.683

Bank deposits of the pension scheme
Upon the approval of the Regulations of the Pension and Gratuity Fund on 8 March 1996, a
dedicated bank account was created for the purpose of depositing the Board’s annual contribution
and for the carrying out of all payments concerning pensions and benefits. The amount of
€19.299.021 (2016: €18.427.450) from the above account concerns bank deposits of the pension
scheme.

9.3 Credit rating of bank deposits
The credit quality of the banks in which the Board maintains its deposits is assessed based on the
credit rating of such banks. The bank balances of the Board are allocated based on the credit rating
of the corresponding banks, as follows:
AA+ / Aa1
A / A2
Water
Board of Lemesos
B+ / B1
B- / B3
Lower than B- / B3
rating
YearNo
ended
31 December 2017

Notes to the financial statements

2.780.631
1.420.145
819.000
15.245.250
8.969.550
29.234.576

2.710.594
1.402.090
810.667
18.538.757
2.390.575
25.852.683

9.4 Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash in bank and cash at hand

29.275.626
29.275.626
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25.880.213
25.880.213

Water Board of Lemesos

Notes to the financial statements
Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2017

Year ended 31 December 2017
10. Retirement benefit liabilities
Retirement
benefits
€
24.085.383
762.896
1.801.654
(926.491)
105.044
25.828.486
808.698
(1.354.817)
(666.019)
101.074
24.717.422

At 1 January 2016
Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
Expense to be recorded in the statement of recognised income
Payments to retired members
Member contributions
At 31 December 2016 / 1 January 2017
Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
Profit to be recorded in the statement of recognised income
Payments to retired members
Member contributions
At 31 December 2017
(a) Pension and Gratuity Scheme

The Board operates a pension scheme for its permanent employees who are not members of the
provident fund. The pension scheme benefits are based on the Law on Pension regarding the Public
Service. On the 8/3/1996, the Water Board of Lemesos regulations of the pension scheme of its
employees were approved and published in the Official Government Gazette. The Regulations were
amended and published in the Official Government Gazette on the 23/1/2009. The Board is the
administrator of the Scheme, the funds of which are deposited in separate accounts. The
contributions of the Board, the employee contributions of 3% on pensionable earnings (as of
1/10/2012), as well as the employee contributions for pension transfer to the members’ widows and
orphans, are deposited in the pension scheme.
(b) Provident Fund
Contributions are made in the provident fund both from the employees as well as from the Board.
The Fund is administered by an administrative committee.
10.1

Provision for retirement benefits

Present value of liability at year-end
Actual value of Scheme assets at year-end
Recognised provision for retirements benefits
Allocated as:
Non-current liability

2017
€
25.123.048
(405.626)
24.717.422

2016
€
26.188.405
(359.919)
25.828.486

24.717.422
24.717.422

25.828.486
25.828.486

Based on the latest actuarial study which was carried out on 31 December 2015, the accumulated
actuarial deficit amounted to €5.133.500 (31/12/12: €9.456.863). The limit of compulsory retirement of
all employees was 63 years. As of 1 January 2016, the limit of compulsory retirement is 65.
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Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2017
10.2

Movement in the Scheme’s fair value
2017
€
Change in liabilities during the year
Actuarial liability at 1 January
Interest cost
Current service cost
Defined employee contribution
Benefits paid
Actuarial (gain) / loss – economic assumptions
Actuarial gain - experience
at 31 December

26.188.404
391.623
423.853
142.812
(666.019)
(1.011.518)
(346.108)
25.123.047

24.400.732
509.058
262.066
146.017
(926.491)
2.345.420
(548.398)
26.188.404

359.918
6.778
41.738
(2.809)
405.625

315.349
8.228
40.973
(4.632)
359.918

Change in assets during the year
Actuarial liability at 1 January
Expected return on assets
Defined employee contribution
Actuarial loss
Balance at 31 December
Net liability at 31 December

2016
€

(24.717.422) (25.828.486)

Actuarial studies
The last actuarial studies for the purposes of International Accounting Standard 19 (IAS 19) were
conducted with reporting date 31/12/2017. The actuarial studies for both funds shall be reviewed every
year. For finance purposes, a new actuarial study is prepared every three years.
The main assumptions used are as follows:

Discount rate
Inflation
General salary increase
Total salary increase

Assumptions on reporting
date 31/12/2017
1,70%
1,50%
0,50%
1,25% (0,75%+ 0,50%) +
κλίμακα για προαγωγές
και προσαυξήσεις

Pension rate percentage increase
Increase in Social Insurance pensions
Increase in basic insurable income
Mortality table
*PA = Pensioners amount

1,00%
1,50%
2,50%
60% of PA90*
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Assumptions on reporting
date 31/12/2016
1,49%
1,50%
2015-2016: 0,50%
2017+: 0,25%
2015-2016: 0%
2017+: 1,25% (0,75+0,50%)
+ κλίμακα για προαγωγές
και προσαυξήσεις
1,00%
1,50%
2,50%
60% of PA90*

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2017
10.3

Impact on comprehensive income

Amounts recognised in the profit or loss:

Interest cost
Current service cost
Expected return on assets
Total expense

2017
€
391.623
423.853
(6.778)
808.698

2016
€
509.058
262.066
(8.228)
762.896

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income:
Difference between expected and actual return on assets
Actuarial gain/(loss) - Economic assumptions
Actuarial gain/(loss) - Experience
Total adjustments

(2.809)
1.011.518
346.108
1.354.817

(4.632)
(2.345.420)
548.398
(1.801.654)

10.4 Actuarial risks
Sensitivity analysis
The below sensitivity analysis presents the
impact caused by a change in each assumption
on the defined benefit liability, while the
remaining assumptions remain unaltered. This
analysis may not be representative of the
actual change in the defined benefit liability,
because it is probably impossible that the
changes in the assumptions will occur
individually, since some of the assumptions
might be linked.

The scheme exposes the Board to actuarial
risks such as interest rate risk, longevity risk
and inflation risk.

The estimated term of the bonds is consistent
with the estimated term of the defined
benefit liability and it is denominated in EUR.
A decrease in market yield on high-quality
corporate bonds will increase the Board’s
defined benefit liability.
Members’ longevity risk
The Board is required to provide benefits for
life for the members of the scheme. An
increase in the life expectancy of the
members will increase the defined benefit
liability.

Interest rate risk

Inflation risk

The present value of the defined benefit
liability is calculated using a discount rate
determined by reference to market yields of
high-quality corporate bonds.

A significant proportion of the defined benefit
liability is linked to inflation. An increase in the
inflation rate will increase the Board’s defined
benefit liability.
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Year ended 31 December 2017
11. Trade and other payables
2017
2016
€
€
10.599.051 11.299.051
5.244.687
4.759.155
2.518.884
2.103.883
2.610.985
2.529.136
1.646.972
1.579.410
22.620.579 22.270.635

Financial assets
Water Development Department
Consumer deposits
Outstanding expenses
Other payables
Deposits for the execution of works
Non-financial assets
Outstanding personnel cost
VAT

159.463
47.676
22.827.718

155.243
22.425.878

430.328
504.201
(202.193)
732.336

464.454
(34.126)
430.328

202.193
530.143
732.336

34.126
396.202
430.328

12. Deferred income
Balance at 1 January
Deferred income at year
Recognition in statement of comprehensive income
Balance at 31 December
Expected recognition in profit or loss:
Within one year
Beyond one year
The deferred income of €85.000 relates to the
estimated value of water reservoirs acquired
by the Community of Palodia upon its
integration in the WBL area in 2011. The write
off will take place in 10 years, a period during
which the water reservoirs are estimated to be
used. The net book value as at 31/12/2017
amounts to €25.500 (2016: €34.000).
The deferred income of €379.000 relates to the
estimated value of water reservoirs acquired
by the Municipality of Yermasoyia upon its
integration in the WBL area in 2013. The write
off will occur in 20 years, a period during which
the water reservoirs are estimated to be used.
The net book value as at 31/12/2017 amounts
to €284.250 (2016: €303.200).
The deferred income of €27.040 relates to the
cost for electricity supply of additional load to
the water reservoirs of Yermasoyia, which was
recovered from the Water Development
Department.
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The write off will occur in 10 years. The net
book value as at 31/12/2017 amounts to
€18.928 (2016: €21.632).
The deferred income of €79.440 relates to
the valuation of the Moutayiaka water
reservoirs,
acquired
by
Moutayiaka
Community upon its integration in the WBL
area in 2015. The write off will occur in 20
years, a period during which the water
reservoirs are estimated to be used. The net
book value as at 31/12/2017 amounts to
€67.524 (2016: 71.496).
The deferred income of €504.201 relates to
the valuation of the cost of water supply
outside the area of Ayios Athanasios. The
write off will occur in 3 years. The net book
value as at 31/12/2017 amounts to
€336.134.

Notes to the financial statements
Year
ended 31
2017
Notes
toDecember
the financial
statements
Year ended 31 December 2017
13. Revenue

2017
2016
€
€
19.535.567 18.290.268
285.650
307.085
169
400
19.821.386 18.597.753

Sale of water to consumers
Sale of water to ships
Other sales

14. Cost of sales
Purchase cost of water

Direct expenses
Land lease
Ypsonas – Polemidia Joint Project
Moutayiaka Joint Project
Moutayiaka Joint Project ‑Compensation from the Water
Development Department
Ayia Paraskevi Joint Project
Wages of guards
Pumping expenses
Chlorination and quality costs
Miscellaneous expenses
15. Other income

Commissions received
Miscellaneous income (Note 15.2)
Rights for the provision of services to consumers (Note 15.1)
(Loss) / Gain from sale of property, plant and equipment
Deferred income
European programmes’ grants and grant for the "Stockholm Junior
Water Prize” competition

12.328.970
12.328.970

11.931.448
11.931.448

2.218
89.443
156.442

7.788
116.057
182.679

(102.900)
72.440
49.872
138.298
7.727
351
413.891
12.742.861

(134.000)
83.028
45.419
114.507
5.450
2.352
423.280
12.354.728

2017
€
93.571
477.363
2.472.826
(87)
202.193

2016
€
88.759
451.817
1.839.403
4.476
34.126

6.594
3.252.460

(14.955)
2.403.626

15.1 Fees for the provision of services to consumers
Fees from water supply to plots of land
Fees from water supply to buildings
Revenue from extension of pipe network by third parties
Other contributions
Reconnection fees
Maintenance fees for domestic supply
Fees from new installations
Supervision fees to third parties
Other fees
Less: expenses for the provision of services
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445.425
168.125
370.932
236.699
195.224
55.154
27.527
57.611
167.083
127.354
1.625.435
1.606.326
177.816
126.286
948.265
936.274
226.343
153.721
4.184.050
3.467.550
(1.711.224) (1.628.147)
2.472.826
1.839.403

Water Board of Lemesos

Notes to the financial statements
Notes
to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2017
Year ended 31 December 2017
15.2

Miscellaneous fees

Additional fee imposed
Fines for waste of water and other
Warehouse settlement account
Water
of Lemesos
Ship Board
connection
fees
Overtime difference for water delivery to ships
Trips of Board’s vehicles for subdivision of land into plots
Sale of scrap material
Year ended 31 December 2017
Miscellaneous

Notes to the financial statements
16. General expenses

Personnel cost (Note19)
Rent
Stockholm Junior Water Prize Competition
Participation in European programmes
Sewage fees
Taxes and licenses
Green area and office maintenance
Pest and rodent prevention and control
Insurance
Repair and maintenance (Note 17)
Miscellaneous expenses
Provision for slow-moving inventory
Provision for doubtful debts
Subscriptions and contributions
Advertising, publications and publicity
Port Authority fees
Personnel training
Personnel uniforms
Meals of technical staff
Health and safety
Other professional fees
Participation in conferences and exhibitions
Hospitality
Manager’s representation expenses
Representation expenses and compensation of Chairman and
members of the Board of Directors
Retirement benefits (Note 10)
Document shredding
Participation in the European Benchmarking co-operation
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
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2017
€
405.550
2.350
2.064
13.480
22.114
28.391
3.417
477.366

2016
€
358.382
1.600
1.865
14.240
22.044
410
24.842
28.434
451.817

2017
€
3.280.570
31
9.489
37.638
12.868
17.296
20.300
1.677
34.003
1.204.028
49.256
973
22.056
6.006
1.821
24.469
2.680
7.453
4.656
10.433
13.390
3.277
6.217
3.570

2016
€
3.234.034
79
9.576
750
5.264
14.491
20.464
1.200
43.278
1.325.835
13.765
946
8.594
6.000
2.309
30.709
2.134
17.233
4.691
6.630
14.895
6.248
4.301
3.570

7.420
808.698
395
1.000
992.888
6.584.558

6.019
762.896
560
500
951.347
6.498.318

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2017
17. Repair and maintenance

Pipelines
Buildings
Vehicles
Water meters
Computer hardware and software
Telemetry system
Water reservoirs
ToolsBoard of Lemesos
Water
Machinery
Furniture
Springs and boreholes
YearTelephones
ended 31 December 2017

Notes to the financial statements

2017
€
785.365
35.103
32.438
148.299
56.030
6.122
46.621
63.365
25.528
4.825
276
57
1.204.029

2016
€
752.275
64.704
33.996
278.801
49.001
8.656
38.666
65.902
26.263
6.965
486
120
1.325.835

2017
€
56.633
30.499
9.715
6.450
3.585
41.783
27.514
22.374
87.183
24.510
38.130
100.815
39.261
24.960
3.551
516.963

2016
€
54.936
25.706
15.986
6.450
7.558
44.541
29.520
28.703
88.028
24.403
34.522
74.510
25.100
3.474
463.437

2017
€
3.025.663
920.819
61.167
24.347
4.031.996
(751.426)
3.280.570

2016
€
3.031.147
879.647
61.079
23.901
3.995.774
(761.739)
3.234.035

3.280.570
3.280.570

3.234.034
3.234.034

18. Administrative expenses

Vehicle operating costs
Printing and stationery
Legal fees
Audit fees
Cleaning of external areas
Cleaning of office and other premises
Domestic travel expenses
Telemetry system charges – DMA control meters
Postage and stamps
Telephone and fax charges
Lighting and heating
Leak detection and repair
Miscellaneous expenses
Call centre services
Other administrative expenses
19. Personnel cost

Salaries and wages (Note 19.1)
Social Insurance and other funds (Note 19.2)
Social cohesion fund
Provident fund contributions
Less salaries allocated (Note 19.3)
The personnel cost is allocated as follows:
General expenses
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19.1 Salaries and wages

Basic salaries
Cost-of-living allowance
Overtime payments
13th salary
Other benefits
Recovery of salaries
19.2 Social Insurance and other funds
Social Insurance Fund
Healthcare
Welfare Fund
Life insurance of employees

Average number of employees

2017
€
2.154.995
494.689
147.831
219.864
15.681
3.033.060
(7.397)
3.025.663

2016
€
2.170.678
501.356
140.368
219.600
18.945
3.050.947
(19.800)
3.031.147

352.145
427.622
127.341
13.711
920.819

356.534
383.741
124.828
14.544
879.647

93

93

66.551
459.664
117.719
107.492
751.426

28.083
517.227
105.989
110.439
761.738

318.033
318.033

311.211
311.211

54.417
54.417
263.616

47.290
47.290
263.921

23.963
293.947
123
318.033

21.942
289.038
231
311.211

The Board operates a defined benefit scheme,
the Provident
Fund
of the Water Board of
Water
Board of
Lemesos
Lemesos Employees, which is financed
separately and prepares its own financial
statements, from which employees are entitled
to the
payment
of certain
Year
ended
31 December
2017 benefits upon their
retirement or early termination of service.

Notes to the financial statements
19.3 Allocated salaries
Capital expenditure
Repair and maintenance of fixed assets
Cost of sales
Miscellaneous accounts

20. Finance income and costs
Finance income
Credit interest income

Finance costs
Miscellaneous finance costs
Net finance income
Credit interest income is analysed as follows:
Bank deposits of the Board
Pension fund bank deposits
Guaranteed provident fund bank deposits
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21. Loss from operating activities

Financial assets’ impairment loss which was reclassified in the profit
or loss

2017
€

2016
€

(87.567)
(87.567)

(309.067)
(309.067)

385.654
95.412
481.066

93.381
93.381

The above amount refers to an impairment loss which was reclassified
in the profit or loss. This loss concerns the shares in the Bank of Cyprus
which were granted in return for converting a part of uninsured
deposits at the Bank into shares.
22. Tax expense
Corporate tax – current year
Defence contribution – current year
The Board is subject to corporate tax on the taxable income at the rate
of 12.5%. Any capital gains are taxed at the rate of 20%.
Under certain circumstances, interest income may be subject to either
corporate tax or defence contribution. The relevant amount of the
corporate tax for the year is 12.5% and the defence contribution rate is
30%.
23. Related parties
The below transactions were made with related parties:
23.1

Compensation of top executives

Compensation of top executives was as follows:
Representation expenses of the Chairman and the members
of the Board of Directors
Compensation of other top executives
Social Insurance and other contributions of other top
executives
23.2

10.990
157.460

9.589
153.364

17.673
186.123

17.591
180.544

12.328.970
12.328.970

11.931.448
11.931.448

Purchases and other expenses
Nature of
transactions

 Parties with significant influence on or
joint control of the Organisation
Water Development Department

Commercial
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23.3

Amounts payable to related parties (Note 11)
Nature of the balance

 Parties with significant influence on
or joint control of the Organisation
Water Development Department

Commercial

2017
€

2016
€

10.599.051
10.599.051

11.299.051
11.299.051

24. Contingent liabilities
The Board seems to owe to the Water
Development Department the amount of
€10.599.051 for water supply, for the period
preceding 1/1/2012, which is included in the
trade and other payables (note 11). This debt
was incurred due to the immediate increase of
the purchase price of water imposed by the
Water Development Department, whereas the
Board had only increased its own water rates in
three annual stages, as per the agreement
signed with the Water Development
Department on the 10th of July 2009. The
amount of €4.091.418 resulting from
interest/charges until the 31/12/2017 (2016:
€3.670.484), which was
25. Commitments
The Board had no capital or
commitments as at 31 December 2017.

calculated by the Water Development
Department on the due amount on a daily
basis, was not recognised in the financial
statements. It is worth mentioning that the
Water Development Department has started
legal action against the recovery of the full
amount (capital plus charges/interest). This
imposition of charges and interest is
questioned by the Board since the increase
imposed on the WBL rates was expected to
take place in three stages, in accordance with
the provision of the agreement, and it is not
considered that the amount of interest/charges
will be paid.

other

26. Financial assets and liabilities
26.1 Carrying amount
The carrying amount of each class of financial
assets and liabilities as included in the
statement of financial position, stands as
follows:

Financial assets
Available-for-sale
Loans and receivables

Note
6
8, 9

Financial liabilities
At amortised cost

11
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2017
€
633.590
32.789.923
33.423.513

2016
€
721.157
29.223.264
29.944.421

22.620.579
22.620.579

22.270.635
22.270.635

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2017

26.2 Fair values
The fair values of the Board’s financial assets
and liabilities measured at amortised cost are
roughly the same as their carrying values.
The nominal value less the calculated credit
adjustments for financial assets and liabilities
with a maturity within the year is close to their
fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities
is calculated for disclosure purposes upon
discount of the future contractual cash flows,
using the current market interest rate available
to the Board for similar financial instruments.
The below analysis presents the financial assets
and liabilities measured at fair value in the
statement of financial position, in accordance
with the fair value hierarchy. Based on the
importance of the parameters used to measure
the fair value, this hierarchy classifies the
financial assets and obligations into three
levels, as follows:
Fair values at Level 3 are determined using
value measurement methods. The Board
mainly uses discounted cash flow methods by
making assumptions based on the market
conditions at the reporting date.
No major changes in the Level 3 financial
instruments occurred during either the current
year or the past year.
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27. Financial risk management
The Board is exposed to credit risk and liquidity
risk arising from the financial instruments it
holds.
27.1 Credit risk
Credit risk arises when a failure by the counter
parties to discharge their obligations could reduce
the amount of the future cash inflows from
financial assets on hand at the reporting date. The
Board has no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Board has policies in place, ensuring that
the transactions creating a credit risk are made
with parties with an appropriate credit history
and monitors on a continuous basis the ageing
profile of its receivables.
The Board creates an impairment provision which
represents the assessment for losses arising in
relation to the trade and other requirements.
These concern specific provisions relating to
significant amounts. Information about the credit
reliability of trade and other receivables is
provided in note 8.
Furthermore, the Board implements processes
which limit the exposure to the credit risk relating
to each financial institution, considering, together
with other factors, the credit rating of the banks
where the deposits are made. Relevant
information is provided in note 9.
The carrying amount of financial assets
represents the maximum exposure to credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date, without taking into account any
guarantees received, was:

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2017

2017
€

Trade and other receivables
Bank balances of the Board (Note 9.2)

3.514.297
9.935.555
13.449.852

2016
€
3.343.051
7.425.233
10.768.284

27.2 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that arises when the
maturity of assets and liabilities does not
match. Unmatched maturities can potentially
increase the risk of losses. The Board has
procedures aiming to minimise such losses,
such as maintaining sufficient cash and other
highly liquid assets and by maintaining an
adequate amount of committed credit
facilities.
The following tables present the expected
maturity of the Board’s financial liabilities. The
tables were prepared based on the contractual
non-discounted cash flows of the financial
liabilities and based on the earliest date on
which the Board can be obliged to pay.

31 December 2017

Carrying
amount
€
22.620.579
22.620.579

Trade and other payables

31 December 2016
Trade and other payables

Contractual within 1
cash flows
year
€
€
22.620.577 22.620.577
22.620.577 22.620.577

22.270.635 22.270.635 22.270.635
22.270.635 22.270.635 22.270.635

28. Capital management
The Board defines as capital the total amount of
own funds, including all reserves.
The Board manages capital in order to ensure
its ability to continue as a going concern. The
Board’s general strategy has not changed since
the previous year.
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The Board manages its capital structure and takes
reasonable measures in the light of changes in the
financial conditions and the characteristics of risks
which relate to the organisation and its assets.
At year-end, capital is calculated using the below
amounts, as they appear in the statement of
financial position:

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2017
2017
€
4.027.217
4.027.217

Total own funds
Capital
29. Post-reporting date events
There were no significant events after the end
of the reporting period that relate to the
understanding of these financial statements.

External auditor’s report pages 41 to 43.
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2016
€
125.219
125.219
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